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Vol. 4, No. 9

"Exhaust all legal remedies"

LAW SCHOOL DISRUPTED BY STRIKE
On Thursday, March 26, a noon mass meeting was held in Room 100. Leaders of
the Black Action Movement and students
of the Law School spoke at the meeting,
held to explain t 1he BAM demands, the
strike, and what roles the law students
could play in support of the demands.
However, when the meeting broke
up a group of approximately 200 people
in attendance at the meeting went into
Room 150 with the general intent of
bringing the strike to the attention of
the students and their professor, James
J. White. The commercial transactions
class and the tax law class that followed
were disrupted successfully by the group
that entered Room 150. There was some
property damage done by individuals i.n
the group who had banged objects on the
desk tops and there was broken glass
from the Monroe Street door; two "stink
bombs" were thrown. The physical presence of the group as well as the noise
created by them made it impossible to
conduct class.
Allegations have been made resulting
from that afternoon,' s activities that
pushing, shoving and other physical
activity occurred and that a few of the
group carried objects described as
"weapons." Law students were alleged
to be among the invading group. The
library was similarly disrupted that
afternoon.

April 3, 1970

Rea:tion to Thursday afternoon carne
from all parts of the Law School community and from BAM itself, which
issued a statement condemning all
violent, destructive, and disruptive
activity. The great majority of law
stu~ents including those who were
supporting the strike felt that this
tac~ic was an unwise tactic and an
unf~ir abridgment of one's right to
attend classes. Many professors also
reacted negatively to Thursday's
activities in a variety of ways. Some
members of the faculty are reported
to have taken steps to initiate
judicial action to reprimand law
students participating in the disruptions, while others also want action
taken against law students who were
encouraging the disrupters. It has
been rumored that Black law students such
as Ed Fabre and Ben Spaulding are to
be prosecuted by the faculty for their
activities with BAM. Other faculty
members insist that any action taken
would not be in the form of reprisal
for incitement or conspiracy activities,
for which no rule exists. Also, some
professors have asked students in their
classes to volunteer for a vigilante
group to counteract any invasion of
the classroom and have praised the students who have attended classes under
the threat of the alleged "violence"
from Thursday's incident in two classes.
While students and faculty debated
Thursday's activity, the strike continued.

1

Board of Directors and the F2culty
Senate.

No more than ten to fifteen percent of
the law school was out on any day, and
only one teacher, Professor Chambers,
cancelled classes. Monday saw the return of picketing to the law school.
BAM and the law school coalition su~
porting the strike decided that only
law students should picket the la~
school. Picketing was peaceful as
most law students crossed the line to
attend class. Lines were withdrawn
Tuesday ~s part of the moratorium on
picketing.
Although closed faculty meetings have
been held during the strike, only few
professors publically gave their views
. on the disruptions. Professor Estep,
however, stated in a public forum in
Room 100 that he is willing to testify
.against those students he saw disrupting
classes on Thursday.
Dean Allen, in response to the disruption and the faculty and student reaction,
issued a statement Monday that briefly
described the incidents of last week and
announced that in light of his conclusion
"that persons in this Law Quadrangle,
under the tyranny of coercion and quite
explicit threats of greater violence,
have been denied their basic human
right to pursue their own way as their
·own consciences :1nd wisdom guide them,"
he will call for an independent
.fact-finder for the School. This factfinder, an alumnus of the Law School
and a lawyer from this state, has not
yet been identified by the Dean. His
duty will be "to determine whether any
student or staff member (of the Law
School) has violated the criminal law
or the School's regulations" 1 but not
to initiate disciplinary proceedings.
The questinn has arisen among both the
students and the faculty as to what
judicial body the proceedings should be
brought before, and how the members
shall be chosen. The present Law School
Judiciary Council 2 is a three-man body
consisting of at least one student and
one faculty member with the third member alternating between students and
faculty every other year. All members
are subject to approval by the Law School
2

At the present time the Boa~d of Directors has appointed no stude~ts while
the Dean is ready to offer Prof. Hawkins as one of his choices. The Board
of Directors has not acted because
of the apparent concurrent jurisdiction
of the university-wide Central Student
Judiciary with the Law School Judiciary
Council and the unconstitutional makeup of the Law School court. The Student Government Council Constitution
says in its Student Bill of Rights
that a student can be judged for nonacademic offenses only by other students. The Law School Judiciary
Ccuncil has a student-faculty co~~ittee
deciding both academic and non-academic
cases. The Board of Directors Tuesday
appointed a committee to immediately
meet with Dean Allen to resolve this
issue and to bring a report back to
the Board so a decision can be reached.
At this time the strike is near a
set.tlement. Reportedly, this agreemer.t may contain an agreement for a
special tribunal to handle strikerelated offenses, which would add to
the confusion the Board of Directors
and the faculty faces.
lsee "Substantive Law School Rules
Adopted by the Faculty" (April 28, 1967)
(As amended Sept. 30, 1968).
2 see "Law School Judiciary Council"
(Adopted by the Faculty April 28, 1967)
!Amended Sept. 30, 1968).

Sex Discrimination
Priscilla MacDougall has filed charges
with the United States Equal Employment Opportunities Commission (EEOC)
charging that the firm of Royall,
Koegel and Wells discriminated against
her because of her sex when they interviewed at the law school. The details
of the alleged discrimination are
contained in a letter from the Kappa
Beta Pi Legal Sorority published in

PROSPECTUS

the February 20 issue of the RG.

A

The Board of Directors has given the
sorority $100 to continue the case.
This weekend four representatives of
the sorority will attend a conference
with women law students from all over
the country at New York University.
While in New York, they hope to meet
with members of Royall, Koegel and Wells
to see if an agreement can be reached.
If there is no agreement, suit can be
filed in federal court under Title VII
of the 1964 Civil Rights Act against
the firm, which once contained Secretary of State William Rogers, sixty
days after filing with the EEOC.

I.

JOURNAL OF LAW REFORM

Nature of the Journal.
j

PROSPECTUS: A JOURNAL OF LAW REFORM
is a legal periodical primarily concerned with adapting law to the changing conditions of modern society. To
this end, the Journal deals with legal
problems as they arise in the social,
political and economic framework of
contemporary life. The Journal reports
past experience in law reform and presents new proposals for experimentation.
In this context, experts from disciplines
other than law are given the opportunity
to express their viewpoints on current
legal issues.

C.S.J.
The Central Student Judiciary has recently decided that, as a service to litigants before it as well as lower level
campus judiciaries, a legal rights committee should be formed. This committee
sould serve not only to advise litigants of their rights, of C.S.J.'s
procedures, and of lower court procedures,
but members of the committee would also
serve as attorneys before the Central
Student Judiciary (and the lower judiciaries), representing litigants who
request legal assistance. C.S.J. functions much as any other court, thus students participating in this committee
would gain a good deal of trial experience.
In its present conception, the Rights
Committee would be composed of law
students, although other students
might be added at a later time. Those
who are interested in working with the
committee, or who are interested in
acting as attorneys before C.S.J.
should contact:
Jeff Hansen
761-0770
Stan Greenidge 764-9077
Ed Kussy
764-9014

The Journal particularly emphasithe value of empirical and field
research as techniques of analysis.
For example, a survey project is currently in progress in an attempt to
pinpoint Michigan's need for additional
legal services in several different
area:,3. Similarly the Journal has recently published a symposium based on
a nationwide survey dealing with the
lang.-range effects of juvenile reform
institutions on youthful offenders.
In short, neither the presentation nor
content of the Journal are bound by
traditional law review approaches.
z~S3

A sampling of past Journal articles
reflects the wide spectrum of legal
issues with which the Journal has been
concerned; possible improvements in
short-term rehabilitation of criminal
offenders, the constitutionality of
draft-card buring statutes, and the
many problems of effective housing
code enforcement.
II.

Individual Opportunities.

The Journal offers a unique opportunity for student writing through
its policy of publishing a high percentage of student articles as well
as articles by professors, practitioners
and laymen. Moreover, in writing an

We are looking for students who are
interested in next semester, although
a number of opportunities might still
be available before the end of the term.
--Ed Kussy
3

article, the student is given an opportunity to improve his general writing
ability through cooperation with staff
editors .and faculty members.

responsive to the strike, have claimed
to suJport the basic goal of ten percent minority enrollment while disagrePing over the tactics of the strike.
This position hardened with the disruption:> on Wednesday anJ Thursday. Those
disr1'1ptions were unjustifiable and

Article research includes not
only legal sources, but relevant publications and field research from all
disciplines. Junior Staff members also
do preliminary background research to
determine whether a topic is appropriate
for further development and publication,
and assist in the actual mechanics of
publishing the Journal.
III.

coun~er-productive.

The response of a sizeable portion of
the Law School community to these
events was strong. As evidenced by
Dean Allen's statement of March 28,
they were appalled by the "deJiberate
interference" with the operation of
the Law School. They have vowed to
discipline the perpetrators of that
interference, and to take necessary
st~ps so that such interference does
not occur again. But, little has been
said about the BAM demands, beyond,
"there are :widely held views in the
Lau School sympathetic to the enlargement of educational opportunities for
black students at the University of
Michigan."

Application Process.

To apply for the Journal, please
submit writing samples such as case
club briefs, memoranda, or .any other
writing (preferably of a legal nature)
which you feel demonstrates your ability
to write clearly and analytically. Include with your application the follow~
ing information:
Name
Summer Address
Expected Date of Graduation
Final Rank in Case Club
Draft Status (if applicable)

Such a response is inadequate if we
are to learn anything truly useful
from the crises. Dean Allen states
th.lt we have seen "what is lost when
la';v is lost." No one who agrees
with this statement, however, has
addressed himself to the fundamental
question of why the law was lost.

All applications should be placed in a
designated mailbox outside the Journal
office, Room llO Legal Research Building
by May 1, 1970. We urge all interested
students to apply. Decisions regarding
applications will be based primarily
on writing ability.

There will be an outside fact-finder
coming to the Law School to gather
evidence on the disruption. We hope
his charge will be expanded to include
the above question; only then will this
co~~unity be able to begin to understand the challenge to authority which
has occurred in the past two weeks.

editorial
No matter what dangers political confrontations and crises create, both in
terms of initial destruction and consequential backlash, it: is undeniable
that they often create an environment
in which we are forced to think over
the basic assumptions we act under.
The BAM strike has raised fundamental
issue-s.

It is indeed tragic that too often
our institutions respond only to
crises. We realize that it is difficult for persons to respond in a constructive way when they feel they are
being pressured. But, it is better
to respond too late and because of
such pressures than not to respond at
all. BAM has continually stated that
if a person supports its demands, but
will not strike, that person should

Many members of the student body at the
Law School, which has been largely un4

I

·j show his support in other ways.

Yet,
only a handful of non-striking stu/dents and faculty have shown that sup, port. Money could have been raised;
jit was not. Legal attacks could have
been made, for example, on the Regents'
refusal to consider the tuition waiver; they were not. Obviously, the
lLaw School feels it has made its com'
Jmitment by its special admissions program. Whether that is true or not,
J this school is also part of a University, which before the strike refused
its commitment.
1 to make

relevant: "No law for the lawyers unle~s lawyers for the people."
Rhetoric?
Cettainly; most slogans are. But, in
it is a significant plea as to what
the Law School should be doing. It
is no coincidence that the last two
issues in the RG, while filled with
strike news, also contains the Bobby
Seale transcript. Both events are
part of a divided America. Rather
than consuming our energies on the
question of reprisals, we should be
posCtively responding to that plea.
Perhaps then we would not have to
worry about law being lost.

If the only response to last week's
action is vengeance and retaliation,
then the gap which separates us will
grow. Rumors abound, strengthened
by closed faculty meetings, concerning
who is to be disciplined. The Dean's
statement was an attempt to put an end
to such rumors but each day new ones
pop up. The situation has gotten to
the point where some faculty members
have asked certain students to report
such rumors to them so they can be
refuted.

Letters
To the Editor:
This letter will undoubtedly be one
of many attempts to analyze the
events surrounding the recent strike
led by the Black Action Movement. I
write it in the hope that more people
will attempt an analysis of what has
happened on this campus, because I
have the feeling that no matter where
one stands with respect to that inevitable line a man must draw to
distinguish his views from those of
his fellow-men, no matter how slim
his actual connection with this strike,
the events of these past two weeks will
ultimately come to be important ones
in his life.

Discipline of students for last week's
activities would only be retaliation.
The disrupters caused their own punishment since their action lost them support for the strike. It is counter
productive for the Law School to talk
about its own disciplinary procedures
while negotiations between BAM and
the administration continue on that
very point. Moreover, threats of
reprisals have been made for activity
which did not cause disruptions.

My remarks are specifically addressed
to the members of two very different
groups of people. The first group
includes those people who felt it
necessary to break from the traditional
form and mode of a strike and to resort in their frustration and ignorance
to senseless destruction and "trashing" of property as well as to actual
physical disruption of classes in an
attempt to force their views on other
people during the strike. The second
group of people includes those who
would allow the actions of the first
group to characterize and symbolize
the strike, who would call the strikers
"anarchists" and criticize President
Fleming for giving into them, who

What should not be lost sight of be-·
cause of the disruptions is that a
strike, coordinated by both blacks and
whites with black leadership, by legitimate means forced the University to
begin to meet its obligation to Michigan's
minority citizens. BAM and its supporters have acted responsibly. It
was the BAM leadership and their white
supporters at the Law School who told
the people to leave the school Thursday.
While people were in the corridors on
Thursday, one of the chants was especially
5

would threaten the University with reduced state financial support because
of its lenient handling of the strike,
and who would allow their narrow-minded
desire for retribution to overcome any
ability they might have to seize upon
the good and constructive things which
can and must come from these events.

hope for reconciliation of the twc
groups above. We are at a fish-orcut-bait period in our evolution in
which such glimmers of hope must be
grasped at and treasured, for they
represent the future. From behind
the mess of polluted air and water,
the disgrace of racial discrimination
and conflict, the blur of a younger
generation numbed by drugs and the
criticisms of their elders, and the
deplorably violent solutions we consistently propose to solve our differences with those around us, comes
a hope for those generations yet unborn which so rightly concern Mr. Yannac:one. We must stop emphasizing how
different we are from each other and
start figuring out how we are similar.
We must lay the ground work for the
future and not persist in ripping
apait the present. The peaceful, determined members of BAM and the openminded, receptive members of the Administration who contributed constructively
to any agreement reached on the BAM
demands have made a beginning on this
ground work. We must forget the petty,
insignificant differences we have
with any of these people; we do not
have time to indulge in such things.
If there was any consideration given
in return for the promise of life we
received at birth, it was a promise
to prepare meaningful ways to approach
future life. In the past two weeks on
this campus we have been offere·d.l
such an approach. We should focus on
it and remember it. It is a beginning.

It is important that the members of both
of these groups understand just what
has happened on this campus recently.
We have not seen violence or threats of
violence work to solve our problems.
We have not seen the great might of the
system come crashing down on those who
would destroy it. Rather, we have
seen the members of a determined minority group pursue goals, which only the
most short-sighted could condemn, with
means which were essentially peaceful,
viable and legitimate and succeed in
reaching those goals. These are not
anarchists for whom an inch is a mile;
nor are they revolutionaries whose
answer to those who differ with them
is to destroy them. These are human
~eings who, in their rational attempts
to carve out an existence, have decided
that there must be a better answer to
our problems than throwing a brick or
a National Guardsman at them.

I beseech the critics of BAM and the
critics of the members of the Administration who worked constructively with
BAM to look beyond the broken windows
and hurt feelings and to try to understand the kind of hope which can be
gleaned from these events. There are
those who would say that the two groups
mentioned above to whom my remarks are
specifically addressed can never be
reconciled, that they represent two
basic and violently conflicting
approaches to life. My reply is that
if that is true then we all are surely
doomed. As our population increases so
will the relative strengths of these two
groups to a point at which their conflict will drown out any constructive
approach to the future.

--John Welborn
To the Editor:
The events of the last week swept by
so rapidly that we must now step back
for a moment and see what we have done.
The trashing of Room 150 was most
unfortunate, but not really any more
so than the fact that we are denying
many minority groups the opportunity
of.obtaining a decent education.

In the success of those tactics employed
by BAM which were peaceful, constructive
and legitimate we can see a gleam of

As lawyers, we cannot condone violence
and should not tolerate it on this
6

campus. However, as human beings, we
cannot condone discrimination and ·
should not tolerate that either on
this campus. So we must get together
--all of us. Rights achieved at the
expense of others' civil rights are
valueless for soon there will be no
sacred rights. We may have 10% Black
enrollment on this campus by the 197374 school year, but that achievement
will mean nothing if those Blacks are
entering a community where freedom of
speech is denied, freedom of choice
to attend classes is obstructed and
violence is accepted as a means of
expression. I would be as disgusted
by our failure to achieve the former
proposition as I would by our acceptance of the latter situation. By the
same token, we cannot complain of
Blacks violating our civil rights while
we continue to deny them what the Constitution--the Bible of this Law School
--guarantees them. For protecting
our civil rights at the expense of the
Blacks' rights is an unworthy and
empty accomplishment. To me an institution of higher learning where people
are free to speak, free to attend
classes as they choose and free from
violence is still an undesirable institution if Blacks are not free to attend.
One need not be a lawyer to know that
the constitution provides equal protection of rights for all. One need
only be a human being ~observe this
law as a way of life.

any course of action promoting women's
rights, and their support of black
peoples' rights (i.e. the strike) has
been nonexistent with the exception of
the black women and two or three concerned white women. While I continue
to support the cause of women's rights,
I am certainly dismayed at the character (or lack thereof) that the local
law school movement has exhibited.
--Joseph Sinclair
To the Editor:
On Thursday, March 26, the Law School
was subjected to deliberate interference with its operations. At about
3:05 that day, Dean Allen, presumably
dean of the Law School, invaded the
first floor of Hutchins Hall. He was
wearing shoes and a necktie capable
of being used as weapons. In at least
one well documented instance, his
shoulder was used against one of our
students. Upon congregating in the
first-floor corridor with some other
men, the group created a commotion
which forced the suspension of a discussion then occuring among a group
of students in Room 100, and a number
of smaller discussions in the corridor.
The possibility of intelligent dialogue
was thus destroyed by this mob, and
the damage to reasoned argumentation
was inestimable. Shortly thereafter,
this same group of rowdies rushed
into Room 150. This invasion, like
the rest, was completely unannounced.

Let reason rule our actions once again.
A healthy conscience, or even any mind
not substantially obstructed by bigotry
and hatred, cannot deny that the Blacks
have made legitimate and reasonable
demands. We must put the violence and
rhetoric aside and all of us--students,
faculty, administration, human beings
--get to work.
--William Bronner

Lat6r, as far as I have been able to
determine, these same people took
over other rooms in Hutchins Hall in
furtherance of their scheme. Dean
Allen continued to roam the law school,
still carrying his potentially dangerous
weapons. Students and faculty were
seen in the corridors, presumably
supporting this man's choice of tactics.
On several occasions, Dean Allen left
scuff marks on the floor with the
heels of his weapons. Such property
damage cannot be countenanced when
future generations of law students
must use these same floors. Such
conduct is particularly outrageous

To the Editor:
It's quite obvious that most of the
women law students don't give a damn
about anyone's rights but their own.
They have failed to get together on
7

when it is realized that vast sums have
recently been expended to wax these
floors.

of the Senate, law clerks for the
Supleme Court who shall serve
durlng good behavior.

On several occasions, serious, if not
fatal, violence was averted: there
was no murder, larceny, flooding or
leprosy. Indeed, the great number
of catastrophes which did not occur
clearly reflect the dangerous manner
in which Dean Allen was proceeding.
Finally, as the Dean and his mob became increasingly excited and enveloped in the electric atmosphere of
Hutchins Hall, noxious fumes were
released.

Justices for the Supreme Court shall
be appointed by the law clerks for
two' year terms and must be recomm"=nded
by the Dean of an accredited law
school.
--Robert Hencken

PETITION DRIVE
Last weekend a number of people in
the Law School signed a letter
addressed to President Fleming and
the Regents. The letter was designed to positively reinforce the
actions that they had taken to meet
the,BAM demands. Those who wrote
the letter hoped that by saying
"Thank you for the concessions you
have made," the Regents and the
President would be more willing to
concede future demands.than if just
a strike technique or some other form
of negative reinforcement were used.
As such, the letter was designed to
supplement the BAM strike. A secondary
purpose of the letter was to raise
money for the Martin Luther King Fund.
Because of the response we received at
the Law School, I thoughtyou would be
interested in the results of our fourday campaign.

The preceeding is an account of an
event which I personally witnessed on
Thursday, March 26. Hopefully, this
account will bring to mind some of the
phraseology used by Dean Allen in
describing the disturbances of March 2527 in his statement of March 28 to the
students, faculty and staff of the law
school. My account is no more enlightening than his. I provide it only to
emphasize my belief that one in a
position of responsibility has an obligation to describe events of crucial
importance to the law school and university community in an objective manner, and not as an advocate. This
Dean Allen has failed to do.
--Jon C. MacKay

W~

received between $375 and $400
from those people who signed the
l~tter.
Of this amount, $80 was
contributed by faculty members. In
addition, one professor who would
not sign the petition, but wanted to
contribute to the Fund, gave $100 to
it. Between 135 and 150 Law School
members signed the letter. Six of
these were faculty members.

PROPOSED CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENT
In a talk with a group of students Tuesday morning Professor Israel stated:
"Earl Warren was a stupid judge who had
a good law clerk." Of course Professor Israel meant that Chief Justice
Warren was very fortunate and had 7
or 8 good law clerks.
Realizing that Professor Israel is allknowing, and therefore correct, I submit the following proposal for a Constitutional Amendment to meet one of
the pressing issues of our day.

In conclusion I would like to thank
all those who worked with me to collect signatures and money, and those
who signed and gave money. For
those of you who would like to contribute to the Fund I have pledge
forms at the Law School.

AMENDMENT XXVI: The President shall
appoint, with the advice and consent

--Tom Quinn
8
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1 i, · on

October 1 29, 1969,

~rill& the mornin& session; the follow-

)la occurred in open court:
) "MR. SCHULTZ: If the Court
flease, before you came into this
)ourtroom, if the Court please, Bobby
~eale stood up and addressed tltis
"'oup. (Mr. Schultz is referring to the
·JfOUP of Panthers who had come to
tourt that morning. 1
-~ "MR. SEALE: That's right, broth«.
"MR. SCHULTZ: And Bobby Seale
~id if he is_
I "MR. SEALE: I spoke on behalf of
inY constitu"tional rights. I have a right
-~0 speak in behalf of my constitutional
~ahts. Thai's right.
r-;;MR. SCHULTZ: And he told those
Jpeople in his audience, if the Court
-~lease-and I want this on the record.
happened this morning-that if he's
attacked, they know what to do.
I "MR. SEALE: I can speak on behalf
of my constitutional nghts, too.
J
"MR. SCHULTZ: lle was talking to
these people about an attack by them.
"MR. SEALE: You're lying. Dirty
-,liar. I told them to defend themselves.
You are a rotten racist pig, fascist liar,
'
-~that's what you are. You're- a rotten
liar. You're a rotten liar. You are a
fascist pig liar.
-"I said they had a right to defend
1themselves if they are attacked, and I
'
. hope that the record carries that, and I
Ihope the record shows that tricky Dick
Schultz, working for Richard Nixon
[and administration all understand that
tricky Dick Schultz is a liar, and we
Jhave a right to defend ourselves, and if
you attack me I will defend myself.
. "SPECTATORS: Right on."

Ju

1

the trial ol
bobby seale
cont'd
,.

and shouting. That will be dealt with
appropriately at some time in the
future."
The defendant Seale then continued
to speak after the jury entered the
courtroom, and the Court then ex
cused them. After the jury left, the
defendant Seale made the following
comment to the Court:
"MR. SEALE: If a witness is on the
stand -and -iestilies agaTnst me and I
stand up and speak out in behalf of
my right to have my lawyer and to
.defend myself and you deny me that, I
have a right to make those requests. I
have a ri!Wt to make those demands on
my constitutional rights. I have a
constltuti~nal- ~igbt-to speak, and if
you try to suppress my constitutional
right to speak out in behalf of my
constitutional rights, then I can only

I
J

Mr.

Marshal,

-1

will direct the

- marshals to clear the courtroom in the
1event that laughter occurs again. Clear
the court~oom of spectators if that

Ioccurs agam.

Let the record show now that there
loud laughter among the specta/ tors.

Iwas

"MR. SCHULTZ: If the Court
please, that is what he said, just as he
related it.
I "MR. SEALE: You're darned right.
"MR. SCHULTZ: In. terms of a
physical attack by the people in this"MR. SEALE: A physical attack by
those damned marshals, that's what I
said.
"THE COURT: Let"MR. SEALE: And if they attack
any people they have a right to defend
themselves, you lying pig.
"THE COURT: Let tJu; record show the tone of Mr. Seale's voice was one
shrieking· and pounding on the table
J

a

a bigot, a racist, and
fascist, and I have said before and
clearly indicated on the record."

Item No. ··12, on October 29, 1969,
during the morning session when the
cross-examination of the witness Frapolly was completed, the following
occurred in open court:
"THE COURT: Is there any redirect
examination?
"MR. SEALE: Before the redirect, I
would like to request again-demand,
that I be able to cross-examine the
witness. My lawyer is not here. I think
I have a right to aefend myself in this
courtroom.
"THE COURT: Take the jury out,
and they may go to lunch with_! the
usual order.

"M_R. SEALE: You have George
Washmgton and Benjamin Franklin sitting in a picture behind you, and they
were slave owners. That's what t)ley
were. They owned slaves. You are
acting in the same manner, denying me
my constit'Utional rights being able to
cross-examine this witness.
(The followina proceedinp were nad
in open court, out of the presence and
hearing of the jury:)
"MR. SEALE: You have had direct
examination, we have cross-examination by the other defendants' lawyers,
and I have a right to cross-examine the
witness.
"THE COURT: Mr. Seale, I have
admonished you previously"MR. SEALE: I have a right to
cross-examine the witness.
''THE COURT: -what might happen
to yo\), if you keep on talking"MR. SEALE: I still have the right to
cross-examine the witness. Why don't
you recognize my constitutional rights?
''T.HE COURT: Mr. Kunstler has his
appearance on record here as your
attorney.
"MR. SEALE: He is not. He is not.
He is not my lawyer, and you know

that.
"THE COURT: He is. I don't
know"MR. SEALE: You know that.
"THE COURT: I know that he is,
and I know this is just an entire device
here"MR. SEALE: He is not my lawyer.
You have forced-you have made your
choice of who you think should represent me. That is not true. I make the
choice of Charles R. Garry to represent
me.
"THE COURT: We are going to
recess_ now, young man. If you keep
this up"MR. SEALE: Look, old man, if
you keep up denying me my constitutional rights, you are being exposed to
the public and the world that you do
not care about people's constitutional
rights to defend themselves.
"THE COURT: I will tell you that
what I indicated yesterday mi~t happen to you"MR .. SEALE: Happen to me? What
can happen to me more that what
Benjamin Franklin and George Washington did to black people in slavery?
'What can happen to me more than
that?
"THE COURT: And I might add
since it has been said here that all of
the defendants support you in your
position that I might conclude that
they are bad risks for bail, and I say.

that to you, Mr. Kunstler, that if you
can't control your client·
"MR. SEALE: I still derr and my
constitutional rights as a defendant in
this case to defend myself. I demand
the right to be able to cross-examine
this witness. He has made statements
against me and I want my right to-"MR. SCHULTZ: May the record
show, if the Court please, that while
the marshals were seating Bobby Seale,
pushing him in the chair, the defendant Dellinger physically attempted to
interfere with the marshals by pushing
·the~ out of the way. [Mr. J?ellinger, a
pactfist, held his elbows to his ribs
raised his hands to protec': his face:
and placed his body be~ween the
marshals and Mr. Seaie.)
"'MR. SEALE: I want my rights. I
want my rights to defend• myself. I
want my right to defend myself in this
trial. I want my rights recognized.
"THE COURT: Mr. Kunstler, I wlll
address you if you will stand up.
"MR. KUNSTLER: I was going to.
address you, your Honor, because you
had made some remarks"MR. SEALE: He doesn't represent
me. You can address him al1 you want.
He doesn't represent me. He doesn't
represent me. You can address him all
you want.
"They are the ones that':; pushing
me.
"MR. KUNSTLER: Your Honor,
you made a threat about my-·
"THE COURT: I tell you that Mr.
Dellinger-if that is his name-has said
here that they support the performances of this man, the statements of
this man.
(Judge Hoffman has difficulty remembering the names of the defendants. Earlier he had referred to Mr.
Dellinger as Dillinger and as Derringer.]
"MR. KUNSTLER: They support his
right to have a lawyer or to defend
himself.
"THE COURT: You told me you
were his lawyer.
"MR. KUNSTLER: Your Honor"MR. SEALE: He is not my lawyer.
"THE COURT: I have the transcript
right here.
"MR. KUNSTLER: Your Honor, we
have gone over that.
"MR. SEALE: I told you I fired him
before the trial began.
"THE COURT: You haven't explained"MR. KUNSTLER: I have explained
it fully. I have been discharged"THE COURT: No, you haven't and
you will.
"MR. KUNSTLER: I told you on
the 27th and I told you on the 30th.
41'\

(Mr. Kunstler is in error. He had
indicated that he was not serving as
Seale's counsel on the 26th. I
"THE COURT: I tell you some day
you will have to explain it.
"MR. KUNSTLER: That is another
threat. to the lawyers, your Hon~r. 'We
have had so many that"THE COURT: Now I will tell you
this, that since it has been said here
that all of the defendants support this
man in what he is doing, I on·r the
noon hour will reflrct on whether the>·
are goc'd risks for bail and I shall give
serious' consideration to the termination of their bail if you can't ccmtrol
your clients, and you couldn't yesterday afternoon.
"MR. SEALE: I am not-1 am not a
defendant--he is not my lawyer. I want
n1y right to ddend myself. I want my
right to defend myself.
"MR. KUNSTLER: Your Honor,
they said this morning they supported
fully his right to defend himself or
have his lawyer of choice, and if that
is the price of their bail, then I guess
that will have to be the price of their
·bail.
"THE COURT: Let me tell you"MR. SFALE: I have a right to
defend myself. That's what you"THE COURT: Will you, Mr. Marshal, have that man sit down.
"MR. SEALE: You trying to make
jive bargaining operations and that's
different from the right I have. I have
a right to defend myself. I still have a
right to defend myself whether you sit
me down or not. I still got a right to
defend myself. I got a right to speak
on behalf of my defense. I have a right
to speak out in behalf of my defense,
and you know it. You know it. Why
don't you recognize my right to defend myself?
"MR. SCHULTZ: May the record
show that the defendant Dellinger did
the S8'1lle thing just now?
"THE COURT: I saw it myself.
"MR. KUNSTLER: Your Honor, he
is trying to sec what is happening.
"MR. SEALE: I want the constitutional right to defend myself. I want
the right to cross-examine the witness,
and why don't you recognize the law
of this land and give me my constitutional right to defend myself?"
Item No. 13:
At the begin!1ing of the afternoon
session on October 29, 1969, Court
and counsel engaged in a lengthy
colloquy during which· the following
occurred:
"MR. KUNSTLER: Your Honor, I
would just like about two minutes to
respond!

"MR." SEALE: Since he made all of
these statements, can I say something
to the Court?
·
"THE COURT: No, thank you.
"MR. SEALE: Why not?
"THE COURT: Because you have a
lawyer and I am not going to go
through that again.
"MR. SEALE: He is not my lawyer.
How come I can't say nothing? He has
distorted everything, and it relates to
the fact I have a right to defend
myself.
"THE COURT: I ask you to sit
down. If there has been any distortion
by anybody, I a·m perfectly capable of
understanding it.
"MR. SEALE: I don't think you
will. Sec? I don't think you will. Your
past actions of denying me the constitutional right to defend myself"THE COURT: Did you want to
reply, Mr. Kunstler?
"MR. SEALE: Yes, I did. I wanted
to reply.
"THE COURT: I was talking to Mr.
Kunstler, if you don't mind."
The colloquy continued and the
Court thereafter sent the jury into the
jury room at which time the following
occurred:
"MR. KUNSTLER: Then I !lave
nothing further to say, your Honor.
"THE COURT: Bring in the jucy,
please.
"MR. SEALE: What about Section
1982, Title 42 of the Code where it
says the black man cannot be discriminated against in my legal defense in
any court in America?
"THE COURT: Mr. Seale, you do
know what is going to happen to you"MR. SEALE: You just got through
saying you observed the laws. That law
protects my right not to be discriminated against in my legal defense. Why
don't you recognize that? Let me
defend myself. From the first time
when I asked-when I attempted to
make an opening statement, and you
stopped me and denied me that right"THE COURT: I will not hear you
now .• I am asking you to be silent.
"MR. SEALE: I want to know will
you-oh, look-it's a form of racism,
racism is what stopped my arguml·nt.
"THE COURT: Hold the jury, Mr.
Marshal
.. MR. SEALE: My argunll'nt is and I
still argul· the point that >·ou rccognill'
my constitutional rights to ddl·nd
myself.
"THE COURT: Mr. Scale, do you
want to stop or do you want me to
direct the marshal..:
"MR. SEALE: I want' to argue the

point about this so you can act an
• understanding of the facts I have a
·right to defend myself.
"THE COURT: We will take a
recess. (The Judge address~s the marshals.) Take that defendant into the
room in there and deal with him as ht:
should hl· dealt .with in this l'ircumstancc.
"MR. SJ·t\LE: I still ~1;111! to hl·
represented. I want to rcvrl'Sl'nl myself.
"THE MARSHAL: 1\lr. Kunstlcr. will
you instruct the defl·ndants, sir. that _it
is the order of the Court that thev will
arise. upon the recess?
"MR. KUNSTLER: If that is a
direction of the Court, I certainly will
pass it on.
"THE COURT: Let the -record show
none of. the defendants have stood at
this recess in response to the Marshal's
request. The Court will be in recess for
a few minutes.
"MR_. SEALE: Let the rel'ord show
that-"THE MARSHAL: This Court will
take a brief recess.
"MR. SEALE: Lt'l the record
show-"
In an attempt to maintain order in
the courtroom, the Court thereupon
ordered the def~:ndant Seale removed
from the courtroom at which time he
was forcibly restrained by binding and
gagging.
The defendant Seale was then re·
turned to the courtroom but eontinut•d
to shout through the gag. The Court
then ordered thl' Marshal tc rcinfon:e
the gag. Tlw gag was then reinforl'l'd
and the th:l\·nuant Seale was Tl'ltlllll'd
to the courtroom. Ev~ntu11lly the jury
was allowed in the courtr•)Om for the
afternoon session.
I

I tern No, 14:
On October 30, 1969, at the opening of the morning session the Court
ordered the marshal to adjust the
restraint on the defendant Seale after
he had complained of discomfort.
Thereupon the following occurred in
open court:
':THE COURT: If the marshal has
concluded that he needs assistance, of
course.
(Upon the request of Mr. Weinglass
and with the agreement of Mr. Schultz,
Judge Hoffman orders th~ ·marshal to
loosen the elastic bandage wh id1 has
begun to choke Mr. Seale.)
"I will excuse you, ladies and gentlemen, of the jury, with my usual orders.
(The following proceedings were had
in open court, out of the presence and
hearing of the jury:)
11

.. MR. KUNSTLER: Yopr Honor, are
we going to stop this medieval torture
that is going on in this courtroom? I
think this is a disgrace.
"MR. RUBIN: This guy is putting
his elbow in Bohhy's mouth and it
wasn't necess:ny at all. . \lr. Rubin is a
defendant. He refers to .1 very lan~e
Negro marshal who has attempted to
silence Mr. Seale.]
"MR. KUNSTLER: This is no longer
a court of order, your Honor; this is a
medieval torture chamber. It is a
disgrace. They are assaulting the other
defendants also.
"MR. RUBIN: Don't hit me in my
balls, mother fucker. [The Judge de·
clincd to read these obscenities and the
one that follows into the record,
asking the reporter to add them later.
He explained his reluctance on the
-ground that there were women and
young people in the courtroom. 1
"MR. SEALE: This mother fucker is
tight and it is stopping my blood.
"MR. KUNSTLER: Your Honor,
this is an unholy disgrace to the law
that is going on in this courtroom and
1 as an American lawyer feel a disgrace.
"MR. FORAN: Created by Mr.
Kunstler.
"MR. KUNSTLER: Created by
nothing of:het than what you have
done to this man.
"MR. HOFFMAN: You come down
here and watch it, Judge. [Mr. Hoffman is a defendant.)
"MR. FORAN: May the record show
t)lat the outbursts are by the defend·
ant Rubin.
"MR. SEALE: You fascist dogs, you
rotten, low-life son-of-a-bitch."
(Mr. Seale is addressing the Negro
marshals.)
MR. SEALE: (Interrupts the Judge's
reading from the transcript] That was
right after I got hit in the testes by
your marshals who attacked me.
THE COURT: (After Mr. Seale's
interruption Judge Hoffman continues
to quote s:ale from the transcript.] "I
am glad I said it about Washington used
to have slaves, the first President"MR. DELLINGER: Somebody ~o
to protect him.
"MR. FORAN: Your Honor, may
the record show that that is Mr.
Dellinger saying someone go to protect
him and the other comment is by Mr.
Rubin.
"MR. RUBIN: And my statement,
too.
"THE COURT: Everything you say
will be taken down.
"MR. KUNSTLER: Your Honor, we
would like the names of the marshals.
We are going to ask for a judicial

1n csdr.ar; .· of the cnti:: condt:,.)~
and t~:c t•ntirc trta!.ne1;t of Bobhy
Scak.
Tl· E COi~RT: You a,;, r r ·.1:y. ''T h.•t Y' u \ ~nt. W!1·.·;• you Lcgin
p ) ·; Wc"J aro\':•<.! l>crc tha~
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lillcdy a<1amcJ fv be an 1\lllcr' ·'''
I: ,·.·ycr :~t t::is liuw.

l ilf COUiU: Yc .t should be
asba:n"'' of your condll l in this ca~e.,
~ir. t:

i ht rt.:aftcr, because of the chaos
the courtroom, t1 morning S<'ssion
r ~-\, i : ·< ~,sect.

Item No. 15:
s~ . .;
During the ;-'ternoon
Thursday, Octohr~ 30th, .1969,
following occurred:

Ill

o:·
th<'

''MR. SEALE: l·U?h his gag] I
would like to cross-examin: the wituess. I want to cross-examine the
witness.
"THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen of the jury, I will have to e,·. cuse
you.
"MR. SEALE: My constitutional
rights have been violated. The direct
examination is over. cross-examination
is over, I want to cross-examine Lhe
witness.
"THE COURT: P)ease be quiet. sir. I
order you to be quiet.
"MR. SEALE: I have 2 •.
cross-examine the witness. :
cross-examine the wit• r.,s at
I object to Y')'' not n,
cross-exan1ine the witnes·
have a right to do s0.
gcn~ '!.;'
"THE COURT: L:t::l'
used until
men of the jury.}"'''
tomorww mornin
must order J'OL
anybody_ about t' "' . as·
body '. ; •. \' ; 1 h
·. I
read the r ··ws,_;apt'l' or ~ ·;
jpu·nals. lJo r.'>t li:cttr .c radiu or
television or iook at tclevisior
If
anybody att.:r
:lf ·
••
with you
"-'t
1s c1;·
mannr~
plea~·. ;et
·1 tro1: _, wit
.1
Uni 'er ~ '· es MarC:1al who will in , . "
lay the matter bE'forc me.
"You are excused tlll
:Amorrow
momirw 2' ten •·"cl..•ck .... Mr. £,· .• rshal, you may ta!.c the ;ury out.
"(The following proceedi:lr ~ we1e
had in opt n court, out of the prrs.::nce
and hearing of the jury:)
"THE COURT: Now I want to tell
you, Mr. Seale, again I thought you
were going to adhere to my directions.
You sat there and did not during this
afternoon intrude into the proceedin~s

in an i:•1:··ror.:r w<,y.
"MR SEALE: ; ;,,·ver int·u·inl untit
i~ w:.> t' e pwp·:; tin\,' L!· n:.: !o · ·;1,
;,;,.l
-~,t ;:nd (· 1 . nd tl:.:: I l·J, .: a
:i)1t :o c~ · ,·:1•.: n:)'::.:if and I h;,vc a
right to cros>L·.·,;uni te the \\i 1 ness. I sit
tbough otllcr crc,•:··e\~·Li :' '"lr:-~ :.wi
after Lhe cross-r:- aminations ··;: c over
I request, demanded by rigLt to ~:rc,ss
elUlrnine the \\ itnc··s, ·tr J in t.n•1
demanded my ri[Jl'. 'c l!.r :1(1• n·yself,
Eincf you ean1:ot sit up here-you
can11()t sit up her.: and continue to
den; me rny constittlliL'nal rights tu
CJOS!-examinc the witn~~s. m:y constitutional right to defend myself. I sit
throughout other cr .>ss-examinations, I
never said anythin;. :md I am not
attempting to iisn'l· this .n .
1n1
attempting t0 get rny righ I to dt 'ld
yself rcr •gni 7 Cd l :: you.
'TilE COlJl'..T: You have employed
one: of the most compctrnl criminal
lawyers I have ever seen.
"MR. SEALE: He is net employed
by me. He is not, and you know
Charles R. Garry is my only lawyer.
He is not here.
have a written
"THE COURT:
appearance here in his own handwriting.

m.:, c >: trl p•; pl.· -, lc. ·nc-. 'lr.
Will>~'
(!;:c wil: '' i:· a Lkpu!y
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"MR. SEALE: I fired him. He filed
an appearance to sec me in jail before
the trial began. Mr. Charles G<~rry is
the only one I ever agreed with that
would be my trial counse and you
know that.
'· rHE COURT: I r ust tell you, sir,
that time is running out. ; r you are
g )ing to persist in tl.js sort of tL;nP,
'•c Court v:i;) J• .vc ,o de~' appropri" :- h y···n condt• ·t.
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5th,
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follow;•Jg .i1e direct ex:>mination of the
witness Ray, the 1 •:';JWlflg tooK >•lace:
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"MR. SEAtE:
would like to
approach the lectern.
"THP COURT: You may not crossexamine, sir.
"MR. SEALE: Well, I think I have a
right to cross-examine.
"THE COURT: No, you have no
riaht in the circumstances of this case.
.. MR. SEALE: Why did you follow
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Party's office o:
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"1 'IE COl
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"MR. <:F
'l•n't Y'''• kt
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"Til< COl rr:T:
:•1 are not
~ . .vyer of
l'
rc.:ord w!.
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rpcarance il:
his own h~~dv:ril1 ·g.
"MR. SEALE: This • ,m was fired.
He was not my lawyer before the jur·beard one shred of t •:idcnce, befo,
one witness everJ ra i~cc' '· •· ~n ·
'al. l t
sw0rr. ill the
01
star:". U';li
t ;,.,r: t:r:cd.
"TilE COURT: You may not stJnd
up''MR. <:[A .·. 'l"i' man is not my
counsel.
"T!'E 'uJRT: \\'ill you sit down.
rl··ast:
"M I, SEA: .E: lie is not the representative of me. I am trying to defend
myself. I'm being railroaded.
.1 !'
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"THE COURT: Will
sir.
"MR. SEALE: Why
-~Jt 1 hav·~ a right to
\;
.1 esses, and

tv c1

you sit down,
can't you see
try and cross! have a right

... j

"l"lll'' '--OUhT: I am s~ying that you
do n"' !1ave the right at this juncture,
sir ..

''MR. SEALE: ML, myself, my own
person have no rig.ht to defend myself?
This is error eo us. It is a complete,
co .. lplete O"L '· f,sc;:;t : :1.:mpt, fascist
Oi •ffJ ti• ·.I-"THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen of the jury"M 1'. SEA I.E: -of denying me my
constitution~! right.
"THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen of the jury, I as'· you to leave the
courtroom.
(Whereupon the following further
proceedings were had herein, in open

J

-

coon, c,utside Ute pmence and bearin&
l the JUry:)
.of
1
"MR. SEALE: liow about that? You
'pre talking about insulting you. Y?u
arc the one that is insulting me,
)
insulting the people of the world,
/insulting the people of America, and
you know it.
"THE COURT: Gentlemen, we will
-~recess until two o'clock."

l

Accordingly, it is there! ore ordered.
that pursuant to the authority vested
in this Court by Rule 42(a) of the
. Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure
I and by Title 18, United States Code,
Section 401, the defendant Bobby
j Seale be punished for contempt.
I will hear from you, Mr. Kunstler.
I MR. KUNSTLER: Your Honor, I
have already indicated that because I
have been discharged I can say_ nothing
for Mr. Seale. He wants to be his own
attorney, as your Honor has read at
least thirty or .forty times from your
own opinion, and I think that I would
be derelict in my duty to my under•
.I standing of my right and liability as an
1 kttorney were I to speak for him now.
THE COURT: Mr. Seale, you have
I a right to speak now. I will hear you.
MR. SEALE: For myself?
I THE COURT: In your own beh.alf,
yes.
I MR. SEALE: How come I ~ouldn"t
speak before?
I THE COURT: This is a special
Occasion.
I
MR. SEALE: Wait a minute. Now
are you going to try to-you going to
I attempt to punish me for attempting
to speak for myself before? Now after
I -you punish me, you sit up and say
I something about you can speak? What
kind of jive is that? I don't understand_
it. What kind of court is this? Is this a
court? It must be a fascist operation
like I see it in my mind, you know,-I
don't understand you.
THE COURT: I am calling on youMR. SEALE: You just read a complete record of me trying to persuade
you, trying to show you, demonstrating rhy right, demonstrating to you the
need, showing you all this stuff about
my right to defend myself, my right to
defend myself, history, slavery, et
cetera; and you going to sit there and
say something about, "OK, now you
_~~ speaJ5"?
What am I supposed to speak about?
I still haven't got the right to defend
myself. I would like to speak about
that. I would like to-since you Jet me
stand up and speak, can I speak about
in behalf of-can I defend myself?
THE COURT: You may speak to
the matters I have discussed here
today, matters dealing w'ith your con.

1

-

1

I

temptuous conduct. The law obligates
me to call on you to spealt at tillS

tUne.

.

MR. SEALE: About what? About
the .fact that I want a right to defend
myself? That's all I am speaking about.
THE COURT: No, about possible
punishment for contempt of court.
MR. SEALE: PunishmenU You've
punished black people all your life. I
mean, you, they even say you own a
factory that produces raw materials to
kill people in Viet Nam [the family of
Jlldge Hoffman's wife is involved in
the Brunswick Corporation which produces war materials, 11mong other
things], you know, so it's nothing,
death is nothing, I mean, if that is
what you're talking about, or putting
me in jail, or prison, or hanging
people, and all that stuff. I have
nothing to say about that. l have
something to say about the fact that I
want to defend ·myself still. I want my
rights, to be able to stand up and
cross-examine·· the witnesses. J · want
that, so I don't know what you're
talking about .
THE COURT: I have tried to make
it clear.
MR. SEALE: All you make clear to
me is that you don't want me, you
refuse to let me, you will not go by
my persuasion, or my arguments, my
motions, my requests to be, to the
extent of even having to shout loud
enough to get on that record for that
record so that they can hear me half
the time. You don't want to listen to
me. You don't want to let a man stand
up, contend to you that that man is
not my lawyer, show you and point
out that fact, in fact, made motions
and told you that I fired the man.
And to stand up here and say,
••Look, I have the right to defend
myself," continuously over and over,
even to the point just recently on
Friday you recognized that I did have
only one lawyer by lettir·g this man
and Thomas Hayden to go and to talk
to Charles R. Garry to see about
coming out here for me, which begin
to show me that I was beginning to
persuade you to do something, at least
allow somebody to investigate my
situation. Now what arc you talking
about? Now all of a sudden on the
record?
THE COURT: I want to make it
clear. 1 don't want to be questioned
any further. The law gives you the
right to speak out now in respect to
possible punishment for contempt of
court, sir.
.
MR .. SEALE: Well, the first thing,
I'm not in no contempt of court. I~
. know that. I know that I as a person
and a human bein:bhave the right to

staftd up in a court and use ms
constitutional right to speak in behalf
of his constitutional rights. That is
very clear, I hope. That's all I havt• to
say. I still want to cross-examine the
witnesses, I make those requests. I
make my motions, and I make those
requests, and I will continm~ to make
those requests, hoping that once in one
way along this trial, you will recognize
my rights as a human being, a black
man living under the scope and influence- of a racist decadent America
where the Government of the United
States does not recognize the black
people's constitutional rights, and have
never recognized them from 1867 to
the Dred Scott case situation, in a
period of slaves you never recognized
them, and here you are, and all I can
say is that you're probably acting in
the same manner as Benjamin Franklin
and George Washington. We are hep to
that kind of business.
THE COURT: Oh, but you are
mistaken- about that.
MR. SEALE: Oh, yes, you're acting
in the same manner as those courts
acted in those periods of slavery
history, and you know it. That's what
you're doing.
If a black man stands up and speaks,
If a black man asks for his rights, if a
black man demands his rights, if. a
black man requests his rights, what do
You do? You're talking about punishmg. If a black man gets up and spealrs
in behalf of the worldTHE COURT: Are you addressing
me; sir?
MR, SEALE: I'm talking. You can
'~~'c "I'm talking.
TilE COURT: That's right, but if
v••u address me, you'll have to stand.
MR. SEALE: Stand? Stand now.
'lr,w let's see, first you said that I
couldn't stand. I got my suit. It's going
to a pigher court, possibly the highest
court in America. [A group of lawyers,
including many blacks, had filed suit
before another federal judge in Chicago
on behalf of Mr. Seale's right to
defend himself. The suit was denied.]
THE COURT: In conformity with
the provision of Rule 42(a) of the
Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, I
shall certify that the series of criminal
contempts committed as described by
the Court in its oral observations and
specifications 1 to and including 16
were committed in actual presence of
the Court, and were seen or heard by
the Court during the trial of the case
of United States of America vs. David
T. Dellinger and others, 69 CR 180.
I find t~at the acts, statements, and
conduct of the defendant· Bobby Seale
constituted a deliberate artd wilful

attack upon the admildltratiop of
justice, an attempt to sabotage the
functioning of the Federal Judiciary
System, and misconduct of so grave a
character as to m~ke the mere imposition of a fine a futile gesture and a
wholly insignificant punishment. Ac·
cordingly, I adjudge Bobby G. Seale
auilty of each and every specification
referred to in my oral observations,
and the Court will impose-strike that
-and the defendant Seale will be
committed to the custody of the
Attorney General of the United States
or his authorized representative for
imprisonment for a term of three
months on each and every specification, the sentences to run consecutively.
[According to _a recent t
C Court
ruling, a defendant in a contempt proceeding is entitled to a jury trial if the
possible penalty exceeds six months.
By sentencing Mr. Seale to sixteen
terms of three months each Judge Hoff.
man presumably meant to circumvent
this ruling. I
I direct the United States Attorney
to prepare from the oral remarks I
made here a certificate of contempt
for my signature together with a
judgment and commitment order.
How soon-you will have to get the
reporter to have that written up for
you. How soon, Miss Reporter, will it
be before it is written? I am glad I
have got both of you [reporters) here.
THE REPORTER: Six o'clock.
THE COURT: Get it to Mr. Foran
as soon as you can, and I will ask Mr.
ForaQ to get the ~ertificate to me and
the case will be continued until tomor-
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row morning. There will be an order m
view of the disposition of this aspect of the case, there will be an order
declaring a mistrial as to the defendant
Bobby G. Seale and not as to any
other defendants.
MR. SEA:LE: Wait a minute, I got a
right-what's the cat trying to pull
now? I'm leaving-1 can't stay?
THE COURT: The court will be
continued until tomorrow morning at
ten o'clock for signing the cci·tificate
of contempt and to continue with the
trial in respect to the other seven
defendants.
THE MARSHAL: Everyone please
rise.
MR. SCHULTZ: If the Court please.
we have the jury to inform.
THE COURT: Oh, yes, I'm glad you
reminded me.
MR. SCHULTZ: Will your Honor set
a trial date for the defendant ·Seale?
THE COURT: Yes. Yes.
MR. SEALE: I demand an immediate trial right now.
THE MARSHAL: Sit down, please.
Come to order.
MR. SEALE: I demand an immeditte trial rigflt now.
THE COURT: Yes, we will give you
a trial date.
MR. SEALE: I am talking about
now. I don't want to be taken out. I
have a right to go through this trial.
THE COURT: A mistrial has been
declared with respect to you, sir. Your·
trial will be conducted on April 23,
1970, at ten o'c]ock in the morning.·
MR. SEALE: I want it immediate,
right now, tqouih.
THE COURT: I am sorry, I can't

try two cases at one time, sir.

(The following proceedings were bad
herein, in open court, within the
presence and hearing of the jury:)
THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen
of the jury, I deeply regret having to
keep you confined in the jury room
this long, but there were matters that
the Court had to considt'r with the
parties and counsd out of your pn·sence.
Since it is now nearly a quurtt·r after
four. we'll be in recess until ten
o'clot·k tomorrow morning. The usual
orders not to talk with anybody about
this case, or let anybody speak with
you about it. Do not discuss the case
among yourselves. Do not read the
newspapers or any other journals. Do
not listen to radio or television or look
at television. If anybody attempts to
talk with you about this case, please
communicate with the United States
Marshal, who will in turn, lay the
matter before me.
Mr. Marshal, the court will he in
recess until ten o'do,· k tomorrow
morning.
Everyone will
THE MARSHAL
please rise.
MR. SEALE: [The marshals are
carrying him through the door to the
lockup.) I still want an immediate
trial. You can't call it a mistrial. I'm
put in jail for four years for nothing? I
want my coat.
THE AUDIENCE: Free Bobby. Free
Bobby.
(Whereupon an adjournment was had
at 4:15 o'clock p.m. until the following day, November 6, 1969, ·at the
hour of 10:00 o'clock, a.m.)
0
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